

# Morphic Global Opportunities Fund ARSN 159 465 157



Signatory of:



**Product Disclosure Statement** 

Dated 4 December 2017

## **Important Notices and Disclaimer**

This Product Disclosure Statement ("PDS" or "Product Disclosure Statement") is dated 4 December 2017.

Perpetual Trust Services Limited ABN 48 000 142 049 AFSL number 236648 ("Responsible Entity") is the responsible entity of the Morphic Global Opportunities Fund ARSN 159 465 157 ("Fund") available for investment through this PDS. The Responsible Entity is the issuer of the PDS and the Units in the Fund. Units to which this PDS relates will only be issued on the receipt of an application form attached or accompanying to this PDS. Application forms for the electronic PDS may be accessed only by printing out the entire PDS. The Responsible Entity is not bound to accept any application for Units.

Morphic Asset Management Pty Limited ABN 33 155 937 901 ("Morphic" and/or "Manager") has been appointed as the investment manager of the Fund. Morphic holds an AFSL number 419916 to provide certain financial services to retail and wholesale clients.

The Fund has been designed for longer term investments and is subject to investment and trading risks, including possible delays in repayment and loss of income and principal invested. Your investment does not represent deposits or other liabilities of the Responsible Entity, Morphic or any other person. None of the Fund, the Responsible Entity, Morphic or any member of the Perpetual group of companies or any other person guarantees in any way the performance of the Fund, repayment of capital from the Fund or any particular return from, or any increase in the value, of the Fund.

This PDS does not purport to contain all of the information that a prospective investor may require in evaluating an investment in the Fund. This PDS has been prepared without taking into account the investment objectives, financial situation or needs of any particular investor. You should obtain professional advice about an investment in the Fund having regard to your particular investment needs, objectives and financial circumstances before investing. If you invest more than \$500,000 or you otherwise qualify as a wholesale client under the Corporations Act, you will be taken to invest under this PDS as a wholesale client.

Any information or representation not contained in this PDS must not be relied on as having been authorised by the Responsible Entity or the Manager.

This PDS was up to date at the date shown on the front cover. Information in this PDS may change from time to time. The Responsible Entity can change matters which are the subject of representations made in this PDS. If the Responsible Entity becomes aware of a misleading or deceptive statement in this PDS, an omission from this PDS, information in this PDS which is not up to date or other information that would be materially adverse from the point of view of a reasonable person considering investing in the Fund, the Responsible Entity will issue a supplementary PDS or a replacement PDS. Changes in information regarding the Fund that are not materially adverse will be available online at www.morphicasset.com, or by contacting the Manager (please see contact details in the Corporate Directory at the back of this PDS) or a paper copy of this updated information is also available free of charge on request from the Manager.

This PDS does not constitute an offer or invitation in any place where, or to any person to whom, it would be unlawful

to make such an offer or invitation. No action has been taken to register or qualify the Units or the offer or otherwise to permit a public offering of the Units in any jurisdiction outside Australia and New Zealand. The distribution of this PDS in jurisdictions outside Australia and New Zealand may be restricted by the laws of those jurisdictions.

If any applicant receives this PDS outside of Australia and New Zealand, that applicant must declare on the application form that they may subscribe for, and be issued with Units in the Fund in accordance, and compliance, with the laws of the jurisdiction in which they received the PDS.

A failure to comply with these restrictions may constitute a violation of the laws in those jurisdictions. The Responsible Entity reserves the right to change the terms and conditions in this PDS.

Terms used in this PDS are defined in the Glossary. All amounts are in Australian dollars unless otherwise specified and all references to legislation are to Australian law unless otherwise specified. All fees quoted in the PDS include goods and services tax ("GST") after allowing for an estimate for reduced input tax credit ("RITC").

The Responsible Entity authorises the use of this PDS as disclosure both for investors or prospective investors investing directly in the Fund, and investors who wish to access the Fund through a master trust, wrap account or an investor directed portfolio service (each, referred to as an "IDPS"). Persons who gain access to the Fund through an IDPS are referred to as "Indirect Investors" in this PDS. Indirect Investors who wish to access the Fund through the IDPS do not themselves become Unitholders in the Fund. Instead, the IDPS Operator invests for each Indirect Investor and so has the rights of a Unitholder. For example, Indirect Investors cannot attend member meetings or transfer Units in the Fund. The IDPS Operator may exercise the rights in accordance with their arrangements with the Indirect Investor. Indirect Investors can request reports on their investment from the IDPS Operator and should direct any inquiries to them. An Indirect Investor's inquiries should be directed to their IDPS Operator. Some provisions of the Constitution are not relevant to Indirect Investors.

The Certification Symbol signifies that a product or service offers an investment style that takes into account environmental, social, governance or ethical considerations. The Symbol also signifies that Morphic Global Opportunities Fund adheres to the strict disclosure practices required under the Responsible Investment Certification Program for the category of Product Provider. The Certification Symbol is a Registered Trade Mark of the Responsible Investment Association Australasia (RIAA). Detailed information about RIAA, the Symbol and Morphic Ethical Equities Fund's methodology, performance and stock holdings can be found at

www.responsibleinvestment.org, together with details about other responsible investment products certified by RIAA. The Responsible Investment Certification Program does not constitute financial product advice. Neither the Certification Symbol nor RIAA recommends to any person that any financial product is a suitable investment or that returns are guaranteed. Appropriate professional advice should be sought prior to making an investment decision. RIAA does not hold an Australian Financial Services Licence.

# Contents

Sec	ction	Page
Imp	portant Notices and Disclaimer	1
1.	Investment Objective and Investment Strategy	3
2.	Key Features of the Fund	4
3.	Manager	7
4.	Morphic Global Opportunities Fund	9
5.	Risks	12
6.	Fees and Other Costs	
7.	Тах	19
8.	Class of Units	21
9.	Applications, Withdrawals and Distributions	22
10.	Fund Structure	24
11.	Responsible Entity	25
12.	Other Service Providers	26
13.	Additional Information	28
14.	Important Additional Information for New Zealand Investors	
1 <b>5</b> .		
Co	rporate Directory	33

# 1. Investment Objective and Investment Strategy

## **Fund Objective**

The Morphic Global Opportunities Fund (the "Fund") seeks to provide longer term capital growth through investing in ethically screened Global shares and using other investments, including derivatives, to manage volatility and other risks in the portfolio.

The Fund will aim to outperform the MSCI All Countries Total Return Daily Index ("the Index") in Australian dollars, a broad index covering world share markets, over rolling three year periods. It will also attempt to preserve a degree of capital for investors in falling markets through hedging.

## **Investment Universe**

The Fund will mainly consist of long and short positions in Global equities, carefully selected with a view to their own investment attributes and, their resonance with the broader global economic and market analysis of the Morphic team. In addition, the Fund may include fixed interest instruments, commodities, credit instruments and currencies, all of which may be invested through assets, exchange traded funds or derivatives, including futures, options, forwards and swaps.

Index futures may be used to hedge overall risk in the portfolio or to amplify returns at sudden market turning points.

The Fund will be managed in accordance with Morphic's Ethical Charter (which can be downloaded free of charge at www.morphicasset.com). This prohibits direct investments in entities involved in environmental destruction, including coal and uranium mining, oil and gas, intensive animal farming and aquaculture, tobacco and alcohol, armaments, gambling and rainforest and old growth logging. At least 5% of the Fund will generally be invested in entities that the Manager believes produce products or services likely to improve the planet. Please see 'Labour Standards, Environmental, Social and Ethical Considerations' in section 4 for more information.

## **Fund Investment Strategy**

The Fund will primarily consist of Global listed shares, and will generally have at least 50% of its net assets invested in these. It may also have short positions in shares that the Manager believes are over-valued, and likely to fall in price, as well as long and short positions in index futures and other derivatives, fixed interest instruments, commodities, credit instruments and currencies.

The investment strategy for the Fund is based on the following core beliefs of Morphic about the role of investment managers:

- 1. Managers need to focus on achieving absolute returns rather than just relative returns for investors.
- Rigorous and highly disciplined portfolio construction and risk management processes assist in potentially achieving sustainable higher returns.
- 3. To manage risk and enhance returns managers investing predominantly in listed shares need the flexibility to invest in other asset classes as listed under "Investment Universe' above at some points in the investment cycle.
- Use of a flexible and varying blend of investment strategies may assist investors in enhancing returns and mitigating risk because no single strategy is likely to be best suited for all markets or at all times.
- 5. Capacity to invest anywhere in the world, rather than just certain regions is vital if investors are to potentially achieve sufficient diversification, as returns from more narrowly defined investable markets may be unacceptably correlated to the Australian market and economy.

## **Fund Suitability**

This Fund may be suited to you if:

- You believe shares offer potential for long term wealth creation.
- You wish to diversify your investments by accessing Global share market opportunities.
- You can tolerate periods when the Fund may underperform the Index, or even experience a decline in unit value.
- You have an investment horizon of at least three years.

The Fund is intended to be usable as a stand-alone investment option for investors building a portfolio of Global assets. However some investors may prefer to use it as part of a blended portfolio of funds which are based on different investment styles.

# 2. Key Features of the Fund

This section summarises some of the key features of the Fund and provides references to other sections of the PDS where you can find further information. You should read the entire PDS for full details before deciding whether to invest in the Fund.

Fund	Summary	Further Information
Investment Objective	The Morphic Global Opportunities Fund (the "Fund") seeks to provide longer term capital growth through investing in Global shares and using other investments, including derivatives, to manage volatility and other risks in the portfolio.	1
	The Fund will aim to outperform the MSCI All Countries Total Return Daily Index ("the Index") in Australian dollars, a broad index covering world share markets, over rolling three year periods. It will also attempt to preserve a degree of capital for investors in falling markets through hedging.	
Investment Strategy	The Fund will primarily consist of Global listed shares, and will generally have at least 50% of its net assets invested in these. It may also have short positions in shares that the Manager believes are over-valued, and likely to fall in price, as well as long and short positions in index futures and other derivatives, fixed interest instruments, commodities, credit instruments and currencies.	1, 3, 4
Ethical Screen and Ethical Charter	The Fund will be managed in accordance with Morphic's Ethical Charter (which can be downloaded free of charge at www.morphicasset.com). This prohibits direct investments in entities (including their subsidiaries) involved in environmental destruction, including coal and uranium mining, oil and gas extraction, intensive animal farming and aquaculture, tobacco and alcohol production, armaments, gambling and rainforest and old growth logging. At least 5% of the Fund will generally be invested in entities that the Manager believes, having regard to the Ethical Charter and labour standards, environmental, social and ethical considerations, produce products or services likely to improve the planet. Please see 'Labour Standards, Environmental, Social and Ethical Considerations' in section 4 for more information.	4
Key Benefits	<ul> <li>Morphic intends to provide:</li> <li>positive returns in rising markets and an element of protection in falling markets;</li> <li>capital preservation through disciplined risk management;</li> </ul>	1, 3, 4
	access to talented and experienced investment professionals, and	
	> a liquid portfolio which should allow you to withdraw your investment.	
Fund Structure	The Fund is an Australian registered managed investment scheme.	11
	The Responsible Entity has appointed a number of key service providers who are involved in the ongoing operation and administration of the Fund. Please see the relevant service providers listed in the table below.	

Fund	Summary	Further Information
Valuation, location and custody of assets	The assets of the Fund are valued daily by the Administrator and the Net Asset Value is determined in accordance with the Constitution of the Fund. The assets of the Fund will be valued at the market value, a value determined from an independent source or by the Administrator in accordance with industry standards. For further information please refer to Section 9 'Valuation'. The Fund invests globally including in countries in Asia, Europe, Africa, North and South America and Australia. The assets of the Fund will therefore be located globally in the relevant countries. The information relating to asset class allocations are contained in section 4 under "Investment Universe and Selection". The assets of the Fund are held by an independent prime broker/custodian. This is outlined in Section 12: 'Prime Broker and Custodian'	3, 4, 10, 12, 13
Liquidity	The Responsible Entity reasonably expects that it will be able to realise at least 80% of the assets of the Fund, within 10 Business Days.	4, 6
Leverage	The Investment Strategy of the Fund may involve borrowing money or securities to generate financial leverage. The Fund may also become leveraged through the use of derivatives and short selling which form part of the investment strategy of the Fund. Generally, the maximum leverage of the Fund will be 100% of the net asset value of the Fund. The risks associated with leverage are set out in section 5	4, 6
Derivatives	The Fund may use derivatives for the purpose of hedging and to increase the liquidity of the portfolio as well as for outperformance. The types of derivatives used by the Fund include exchanged traded derivatives and over the counter derivatives. The risks associated with derivatives are set out in section 5.	4, 6
Short selling	Short selling is undertaken by the Fund for hedging purposes as well as part the investment strategy of the Fund to benefit from falling securities prices. The Fund engages in short selling by borrowing securities from the Prime Broker and providing collateral to the Prime Broker. The risks of short selling are set out in Section 5.	4, 6
Risks	There are risks associated with investing in the Fund. Some of these risks and how these risks are managed are set out in this PDS. You should obtain professional advice before deciding to invest in the Fund.	4, 6

Parties	Summary	Further information
Responsible Entity	Perpetual Trust Services Limited ABN 48 000 142 049.	11, 12
Manager	Morphic Asset Management Pty Limited ABN 33 155 937 901. The Morphic senior investment team as at the date of this PDS comprises Jack Lowenstein, Chad Slater, Geoff Wood and James Tayler. Morphic has been appointed by the Responsible Entity as investment manager pursuant to an investment management agreement.	3, 11, 13

Prime Broker & Custodian	Merrill Lynch International ARBN 125 336 567.	11, 13
Prime Broker and Custodian	Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc ARBN 613 032 705	11,13
Financial Auditor and Tax Adviser	Tax adviser: Crowe Horwath Sydney Pty Ltd ABN 38 001 842 600 Financial Auditor: Crowe Horwath Sydney ABN 97 895 683 573	11, 13
Administrator	Mainstream Fund Services Pty Limited ABN 81 118 902 891.	11, 13

Investor Information	Summary	Further information
Class of Units	Currently, there is only one class of Units offered under this PDS.	9
Applications	Units will be available for issue on each Business Day.	9
	Units will be issued at the Current Unit Value (plus the buy spread).	
	Applications must be received and accepted by the Administrator by 12:00 noon Sydney time on a Business Day in order for Units to be issued as at the price calculated as at that day. Applications received after that time will generally be issued at the price calculated as at the following Business Day.	
	Indirect Investors should not complete the application form attached to or accompanying the PDS. Instead, they should complete any relevant forms provided by the IDPS Operator or contact their IDPS Operator to make an application for Units.	1
Minimum Investment	AU\$10,000 or such other amount as the Responsible Entity determines.	10
Minimum Additional Investment	AU\$5,000 or such other amount as the Responsible Entity determines.	10
Minimum Balance	AU\$5,000 or such other amount as the Responsible Entity determines.	10
Withdrawals	Withdrawal requests are processed on each Business Day.	6, 10
	Withdrawal requests must be received by the Administrator by 12:00 noon Sydney time on a Business Day in order for Units to be processed using the withdrawal price calculated as at that day. Withdrawal requests received after that time will generally be processed using the withdrawal price calculated as at the following Business Day.	
	Provided the Administrator has received your original signed withdrawal request form, withdrawal proceeds will generally be paid within 10 Business Days from the relevant withdrawal day. However the Responsible Entity may delay or stagger withdrawal requests and withdrawals may be suspended in exceptional circumstances.	
	Indirect Investors should not complete a withdrawal request form for the Fund. Instead, they should complete any relevant forms provided by the IDPS Operator or contact their IDPS Operator to make a withdrawal of Units.	

Investor Information	Summary	Further information
Minimum Withdrawal	AU\$5,000 or such other amount as the Responsible Entity determines.	10
Valuations	Daily pricing or such other times as the Responsible Entity determines.	10
Distribution Frequency	Semi-annually, as at 30 June and 31 December.	10

Fees	Summary	Further Information
Contribution Fee and Withdrawal Fee	Nil	7
Management Fee	1.35% per annum ("p.a.") of net asset value ("NAV")	7
Performance Fee	15.375% of excess performance above the Hurdle Return	7
Expense Recovery Fee	Capped at 0.27% p.a. of the NAV	7
Buy/Sell Spread	0.3% (Buy) / 0.3% (Sell)	7

Disclosure Benchmarks	Summary	Further Information
Benchmark 1: Valuation of Assets	The Fund meets this benchmark. The valuation of all of the Fund assets are provided by the Fund's Administrator, Mainstream Fund Services Pty Ltd which is unrelated to both the Responsible Entity and the Investment Manager. The Responsible Entity intends to comply with this benchmark going forward.	12
Benchmark 2: Periodic Reporting	The Fund meets this benchmark. Unitholders will receive periodic disclosure on key information about the Fund on an annual, semi-annual and monthly basis. All reports are available on the Morphic website www.morphicasset.com The Responsible Entity intends to comply with this benchmark going forward.	14

# 3. Manager

## Background

Morphic has been established by a proven team of global fund managers with more than 40 years of combined investment experience. This experience, which spans

senior management and transactional experience in fund management, economics, investment banking and global research, covering most of the world, multiple business cycles and across a range of asset classes, has allowed them to form what the founders believe is a durable but adaptive approach to building and preserving investment wealth.

Morphic's founders and joint Chief Investment Officers Jack Lowenstein and Chad Slater were two of the most successful portfolio managers at Hunter Hall Investment Management Ltd ("Hunter Hall"), a subsidiary of Hunter Hall International Ltd, a company which was at that time the largest Funds Management business focussed on ethically screened investment listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

## **Investment Philosophy**

The Manager expects the best returns to come from successful stock picking on both the long and short side. However it intends to manage risk, and where possible amplify gains, through use of index futures and individual stock options.

In addition Morphic expects to continue to find that some market or economic anomalies will be better exploited by investments in currency, commodity and fixed income assets and derivatives.

After lengthy careers as global investors, Lowenstein and Slater believe that:

- only funds with flexible hedging strategies will be able to deliver acceptable steady real absolute returns for investors over the next decade;
- slavish adherence to any single investment style, such as "value", "growth" or "momentum" is unlikely to be in the interests of investors through all investment and economic cycles;
- while buying lower priced stocks with reasonable growth prospects is more often a good strategy than simply buying either pure "value" stocks or pure "growth" stocks, it is also important to consider price momentum to increase confidence that returns from these investments will not be too far away in the future.

One of the best arguments for this kind of disciplined but flexible approach comes in a paper published in the Journal of Portfolio Management in August 2004 and written by Andrew W. Lo, entitled The Adaptive Markets Hypothesis: Market Efficiency from an Evolutionary Perspective:

> "Under the Adaptive Market Hypothesis (AMH), investment strategies undergo cycles of profitability and loss in response to changing business conditions, the number of competitors entering and exiting the industry, and the type and magnitude of profit opportunities available....

"Innovation is the key to survival. The classical Efficient Market Hypothesis suggests that certain levels of expected returns can be achieved simply by bearing a sufficient degree of risk. The AMH implies that the risk/reward relation varies through time, and that a better way of achieving a consistent level of expected returns is to adapt to changing market conditions. By evolving a multiplicity of capabilities that are suited to a variety of environmental conditions, investment managers are less likely to become extinct as a result of rapid changes in business conditions."

## Investment Team

## Jack Lowenstein

Jack Lowenstein, Joint CIO and Managing Director of Morphic, was the Deputy Chief Investment Officer at Hunter Hall, responsible for risk management and portfolio construction. He joined Hunter Hall when it had just \$13m under management and played a key role in building it to a peak of just under \$3 billion in FUM. In his ten years as a Portfolio Manager with Hunter Hall he generated substantial out-performance.

Prior to joining Hunter Hall, Jack Lowenstein had careers in corporate finance and as an international financial journalist and has been involved in the research and investment of global equities and other securities for more than 25 years

Jack Lowenstein has a BA and a MA from Oxford University and in 2009 he completed the three year part time Owner/President Management Course at Harvard Business School.

Jack spends approximately 80% of his time on executing the Fund's investment Strategy.

## Chad Slater

Chad Slater, Joint CIO and Executive Director of Morphic, was a Portfolio Manager and the Head of Currency and Macroeconomics at Hunter Hall. In his five years with Hunter Hall (which were dominated by the global financial crisis), he generated substantial out-performance. Prior to joining Hunter Hall, he worked for BT Financial Group as an Investment Analyst including a secondment with Putnam Investments in Boston, USA and previously worked as an Economist for the Australian Federal Treasury.

Chad has been involved in the research and investment of global equities for more than 10 years.

Chad Slater has a B.Comm and B.Econ (Hons) from the University of Queensland and has completed the Chartered Financial Analyst ("CFA") program and been awarded the CFA Charter.

Chad spends approximately 90% of his time on executing the Fund's investment Strategy.

Working with the Joint CIOs in the investment team are an experienced Research Manager and Risk Manager.

### Geoff Wood

Geoff Wood, the Risk Manager, previously worked in Sydney at Global Trading Strategies, a global macro hedge fund that managed in excess of US\$1 billion through the global financial crisis. He was responsible for risk management. Prior to this Geoff Wood worked at Barclays Capital in London managing the risk on their hedge fund business. He holds an M.Sc Financial Engineering (Distinction) from the University of London as well as an M.Sc in Computer Science (Distinction) from the University of Birmingham and a B.Eng Mechanical Engineering (1st Class) from the University of Birmingham.

Geoff has been involved in the research and risk management of global equities and other securities for over 10 years.

Geoff spends approximately 90% of his time on executing the Fund's investment Strategy.

#### James Tayler

James Tayler, the Head of Research, joined Morphic in 2016. He was previously Head of Investment Research at Knight Vinke, a leading activist investor focused on European companies, based in Zurich and London.

Prior to this, James was Head of Investment Research for a single-family office in Zug, Switzerland following more than 10 years at Swiss Reinsurance Company. He has a B.A (Hons) in Industrial Economics from Nottingham University and has been involved in the research and investment of global equities for more than 10 years.

James spends approximately 90% of his time on executing the Fund's investment Strategy.

The Morphic team is based in Sydney, Australia.

#### Alignment of Interests

As at the date of this PDS, members of the Morphic investment management team are substantial investors in

the Fund, ensuring that their interests are aligned with investors.

Further, the Fund must out-perform the Index, and generate positive absolute returns, before a performance fee becomes payable to Morphic in respect of the Fund, ensuring that a performance fee is not payable to Morphic unless investors receive a positive return. In addition one third of any bonuses earned by the investment team will be invested in the Fund for a minimum period of three years from the day they are paid, meaning that the investment team will be committed to the long term as well as short term performance of the Fund.

As at the date of this PDS, the joint CIOs own almost half of the equity in Morphic, and all team members are shareholders in the company. The value of this equity will in large part be driven by the returns achieved for investors in the Fund.

The Manager also manages the Morphic Ethical Equities Fund Limited (ASX: MEC), an investment company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. The MEC employs an investment strategy substantially similar to the Fund.

The Responsible Entity has appointed Morphic as investment manager for the Fund pursuant to an investment agreement. Please see section 10 for further information.

# 4. Morphic Global Opportunities Fund

#### Economic and market analytic process

At the heart of the Morphic process is a top down review of key global or regional economic scenarios likely to significantly impact investment outcomes.

At any given time up to seven major themes, long and short term, are under analysis by the investment team.

Within each outcome, relevant asset classes (which will vary from scenario to scenario) are ranked for their likely return prospects. Each of these asset classes will then be assessed for their value characteristics and momentum trends. The value test aims to measure the extent to which the market is already pricing in the Morphic assessed outcome probability. When value is established, the momentum test will be used to minimise the risk of being too early.

### **Investment Universe and Selection**

The Fund will mainly consist of long and short positions in Global equities, carefully selected with a view to their own investment attributes, their resonance with the broader global economic and market analysis of the Morphic team. In addition, the Fund may include fixed interest instruments, commodities, credit instruments and currencies, all of which may be invested through assets, exchange traded funds or derivatives, including futures, options, forwards and swaps.

Index futures may be used to hedge overall risk in the portfolio or to amplify returns at sudden market turning points.

The Fund invests globally, including in countries on the continents of Asia, Europe, Africa, North America, South America and Australia. For equity exposures, the exposure limit for each country is based on the size of each relevant market.

The currency denomination of the assets of the Fund is dependent on the currency used in the location of the assets, but the currency risk is treated separately and the currency may be hedged into the Australian dollar or other currencies. The asset allocation ranges for different types of assets that the Fund may invest in are set out in the following table:

Type of Asset	Allocation Range
Australian listed equities	0-200%*
Australian unlisted equities	0-200%
International listed equities	0-200%
International unlisted equities	0-200%
Australian government bonds	0-200%
Australian corporate bonds	0-200%
International government bonds	0-200%
International corporate bonds	0-200%
Exchange-traded derivatives	0-200%
Over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives	0-200%
Cash equivalent investments	0-200%

\* As a result of short trading, the Fund may hold a net short position on Australian Listed Equities from time to time.

## Portfolio Construction

Morphic will use a highly disciplined, focussed and predictable process in the portfolio construction of the Fund, including the way it will review positions and manage risk.

The risks associated with investing in the Fund and how these risks are managed are discussed below under the sub-heading "Risk Management Framework" and in section 5.

The Investment strategy may change. Any material changes to investment strategy will be notified to the Responsible Entity by the Manager and written notification will be provided by the Responsible Entity to investors.

## Derivatives

The Fund uses derivatives for hedging purposes and as part of its investment strategy to achieve some of its exposures to equities as well as to fixed interest, commodity, foreign exchange and credit assets.

Derivatives are used for a range of reasons including, but not limited to the purposes below:

- To more efficiently gain economic exposure to the underlying physical securities
- To increase the liquidity of the portfolio as the underlying physical securities often have higher transaction costs and less liquidity
- To achieve leverage and thereby amplify the Fund's exposure to investment themes
- To adjust currency exposures without having to buy and sell underlying assets which may have higher transaction costs.

The types of derivatives that may be used are exchange traded futures and options, and over the counter option, swaps and forwards. The use of derivatives may expose the Fund to certain risks. Please see section 5 for further information regarding the risks associated with derivatives including the collateral requirements for derivative counterparties.

As at the date of this PDS the only counterparties used are Merrill Lynch International and Morgan Stanley & Co. International, the Fund's Prime Brokers. As at the date of this PDS, the Fund only engages with counterparties with a minimum Standard & Poor's issuer rating of A- (or Moody's Investors Service equivalent).

## Short Selling

The Fund may engage in short selling.

Short selling by the Fund may involve individual equities as well as exchange traded funds (ETFs).

In some instances securities may be short sold to hedge other assets in the Fund. In other cases short-selling may be used as part of the investment strategy of the Fund to benefit from anticipated falls in the prices of securities following research by the Manager that the securities are over-valued or likely to experience selling pressure for other reasons.

The Fund engages in short selling by borrowing securities from the Prime Broker and providing collateral to the Prime Broker.

See section 5 for a summary of the key risks associated with short selling and how they are managed.

### Risk Management Framework

The preservation of capital is at the centre of the risk management policy of Morphic. The investment team employs qualitative and quantitative methods to manage the level of risk in the Fund.

The investment team uses the following investment guidelines as part of the risk management process<sup>1</sup>:

- Maximum exposure limits to single stock positions
- Limited number of positions
- Stop-loss guidelines which set maximum loss tolerance for each individual position
- Internal limits for aggregate exposures to individual countries, industries, and asset classes

#### Leverage

The Investment Strategy of the Fund may involve borrowing money or securities to generate financial leverage.

The Fund may also become leveraged through the use of derivatives and short selling which form part of the investment strategy of the Fund.

The maximum total leverage for the portfolio is 100% of the Fund's net asset value for equity related positions (for example, for every \$1 of the Fund's net asset value up to \$1.00 of that exposure may be funded by leverage).

For \$1 of the Fund's net asset value invested, if the general market rose 10% over a specified period it may be expected that the net asset value would rise to \$1.10 without the use of leverage. Under the same scenario, if the general market fell by 10% it may be expected that the net asset value would fall to \$0.90.

For \$1 of Fund's net asset value invested, if the general market rose 10% over a specified period it may be expected that the net asset value would rise to \$1.20 under the maximum anticipated leverage that would generally be expected. Conversely under the same general leverage scenario, if the general market fell by 10% then it may be expected that the net asset value would fall to \$0.80.

The only providers of leverage the Fund as at the date of this PDS is the Fund's Prime Brokers, Merrill Lynch International and Morgan Stanley & Co. International, entities regulated by the Financial Services Authority under the laws of the United Kingdom.

When the Fund employs leverage the Prime Broker may encumber some or all of the assets of the Fund and the Fund may be exposed to set-off rights by the Prime Broker.

Please note the leverage level referred to above is the maximum that might be employed by the Fund. Since inception the Fund has never been highly levered, and the Manager anticipates the maximum level of leverage will only be used in exceptional circumstances, if ever.

Please see section 5 for a summary of the key risks associated with the Fund's use of leverage.

As an additional layer of risk management of leverage in the Fund, the Fund will be monitored by the Manager using a combination of:

- Value at Risk ("VAR") calculations;
- Stress and scenario analysis; and

• Portfolio stop-loss guidelines which set maximum loss tolerance for the portfolio as a whole.

## Liquidity

The Responsible Entity reasonably expects that it will be able to realise at least 80% of the assets of the Fund, within 10 Business Days.

Liquidity tests are carried out to ensure the majority of the Fund assets are available to meet redemptions, or can be redeployed to meet changing market opportunities. To manage liquidity risks, the Manager carries out daily tests to ensure it can meet its obligations above. These tests include analysis of how long it would take to close out all positions in the fund without unduly influencing the prices of the underlying assets.

#### Access to Liquidity

Due to the nature of the assets of the Fund (i.e. the majority of the assets are transparent and highly traded), investors will generally be able to withdraw from the Fund on a daily basis while the Fund is liquid. See Section 9 Applications, Withdrawals and Distributions for more information.

# Labour Standards, Environmental, Social and Ethical Considerations

The Fund will be managed in accordance with Morphic's Ethical Charter (which can be downloaded free of charge at www.morphicasset.com) and labour standards, environmental, social and governance considerations. To achieve the objectives embodied by Morphic's Ethical Charter, the Manager will seek to build the Portfolio by applying a "negative screen" that prohibits direct investments issued by entities (including their subsidiary entities) in the following industries:

- Armaments;
- Tobacco and alcohol production;
- Gambling;
- Coal and uranium mining;
- Oil and gas extraction;
- Intensive animal farming and aquaculture; or
- Logging of rainforest or old growth timber.

The Manager intends to apply a "positive screen" by generally investing a minimum of 5% of the Fund in entities which produce products or services that it considers are likely to improve the planet. The criteria for investments

breached due to market volatility. As such, the guidelines may change from time to time.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> These guidelines are part of the current risk management framework and are reviewed periodically for appropriateness. At times these guidelines may be

that would fall within the scope of the "positive screen" is set out in the Manager's Ethical Charter.

The Manager will monitor and review investments made by the Fund for consistency with the Manager's Ethical Charter and labour standards, environmental, social and ethical considerations on a regular basis (and at least annually).

If, as part of its review process the Manager decides any investment made by the Fund is inconsistent with the scope of the "negative screen" or the Manager's Ethical Charter, the Manager will exit this investment as quickly as practically possible.

The Manager is also a signatory to the Principles of Responsible Investment (PRI) which entails an explicit commitment to, and the adoption of, six principles which it believes will improve its ability to meet commitments to investors as well as better align our investment activities with the broader interests of society.

These six principles are as follows:

## Principle 1

Incorporating, Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) issues into investment analysis and decisionmaking processes

### Principle 2

Being active owners and incorporating ESG issues into ownership policies and practices

### Principle 3

Seeking appropriate disclosure on ESG issues by the entities in which the Fund invests

### Principle 4

Promoting acceptance and implementation of the principles within the investment management industry

## Principle 5

Working together to enhance effectiveness in implementing the principles

## Principle 6

Reporting on the Manager's activities and progress towards implementing the principles

Decisions about the selection, retention or realisation of investments for the Fund will have regard to the above principles.

The Manager does take into account labour standards when making decisions about the selection, retention or realisation of investments of the Fund. The Manager has no pre-determined view about which or how far labour standards will be taken into account for an investment as each investment of the Fund will be decided on a case by case basis.

The Responsible Investment Certification Program does not constitute financial product advice. Neither the Certification Symbol nor RIAA recommends to any person that any financial product is a suitable investment or that returns are guaranteed. Appropriate professional advice should be sought prior to making an investment decision. RIAA does not hold an Australian Financial Services Licence.

# Risks

5.

All investments involve risk and there can be no guarantee against loss resulting from an investment in the Fund, nor can there be any assurance that the Fund's investment objectives will be achieved or you will get any of your money back. While it is not possible to identify every risk that is relevant to the Fund, the main categories of risk are summarised below.

### Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of adverse movements in markets (including asset prices, volatility, changes in yield curve, changes in interest rates or other market variables) impacting upon assets held by the Fund.

## Liquidity Risk

There is a risk that a particular position will not be able, or will not easily be able, to be unwound or offset at or near the previous market price, due to inadequate market depth or to disruptions in the marketplace. There is also a risk that the Fund may become illiquid. If this were to happen, the Responsible Entity could not process withdrawal requests and could only give effect to withdrawals in accordance with the Corporations Act. The Fund is not listed and there is not expected to be a secondary market.

## Counterparty (Credit) Risk

Counterparty risk is the risk that a counterparty to a contract will fail to perform contractual obligations (e.g. default in either whole or part) under the contract.

Counterparties may include brokerage and trading firms, banks, and the Prime Broker.

## Derivative Risk

Derivative contracts are subject to particular risks listed below:

## Market Risk

Significant losses from derivatives contracts may occur in the event of extreme market movements.

## Counterparty Risk

In derivative transactions, there is a risk that a counterparty to a transaction may wholly or partially fail to perform their contractual obligations under contract. The trading of all OTC derivatives is governed by market standard ISDA agreements. Where credit support agreements exist with the derivative counterparty, exposures to the derivative counterparty are also collateralised to minimise residual exposure of the Fund to that counterparty. However, the counterparty's assets used as collateral may decrease in value over time, which may increase the exposure of the Fund to that counterparty.

## Operations Risk

Information systems or internal controls may be less than effective or not entirely accurate and this can result in material loss.

## Leverage/Gearing

The Fund may borrow money to make investments, in addition, a derivative or foreign exchange contract typically involves leverage. This is due to the notional size of the derivatives portfolio being able to be larger than the total deposits needed to be placed with the broker to support the exposures. Consequently, an adverse change in the relevant price level can result in a loss of capital that is more exaggerated than would have resulted from an investment that did not involve the use of leverage inherent in the derivative contract. The overall notional exposure of the Fund will be effectively monitored by the Value-At-Risk ("VAR") calculations. While the Fund may borrow up to 100%, leverage will generally be more limited than this.

## Foreign Markets Risk

Foreign markets risk is the potential adverse political, economic or social developments affecting the returns on investments in a country which may reduce the value of assets in that country.

## Currency Risk

Part of the Fund's strategy will be to take foreign currency positions so as to produce a beneficial outcome in Australian dollar terms. Consequently, the value of the Fund will fluctuate in accordance with changes in the foreign exchange rates between the Australian dollar and the currencies in which the Fund has positioned into.

## Legal Risk

The Fund may be affected by the actions of governments and regulatory bodies. Legislation (including legislation relating to tax) or regulation may be introduced which may have an impact on the Fund or on its investments.

## Fund Risk

Risks particular to the Fund may include the termination of the Fund, the fees and expenses could change, and the Responsible Entity may retire or be removed. There is also a risk that the investment manager could change. The success of Morphic's trading and the investment performance is to a large degree dependent upon the services of its senior portfolio management team. The loss of the services of these individuals could result in Morphic's inability to trade effectively for the Fund's accounts. In addition, there is no guarantee that any of the current employees of Morphic will continue to work with Morphic in the future.

## **Operational Risk**

Disruptions to administrative procedures or operational controls may challenge day to day operations. Adverse impacts may arise internally through human error, technology or infrastructure changes or through external events such as regulatory changes.

## Short Selling Risk

The Fund may establish short positions in securities (including derivatives). To make delivery to the buyer, the Fund must borrow the security, and the Fund is obligated to return the security to the lender, which is accomplished by a later purchase of the security by the Fund. Lenders may rescind the loan of securities at any time and cause the borrower to repurchase shares at inflated prices, resulting in a loss. Taking short positions in an asset involves a higher level of risk than buying an asset since the loss with buying an asset is generally limited to the purchase amount, whereas the loss with short positions, is unlimited (i.e. there is no upper limit on the price of the asset). Diversification of the short portfolio minimises the risks involved in short selling securities. A review of any position that has a 10% adverse price movement is carried out by Morphic and such positions will be reassessed.

## Leverage Risk

Leverage generally involves the use of borrowed money or securities, or use of derivatives to increase the potential return from an investment. Leverage occurs where the level of exposure to investments exceeds the amount of cash invested. As a result leverage magnifies both potential investment gains and losses. Losses from leveraged investments can be substantial and can exceed the original amount invested.

## Rehypothecation Risk

The Responsible Entity has appointed both Merrill Lynch International & Morgan Stanley & Co. International, as the Prime Brokers under the terms of an International Prime Brokerage Agreement (the "IPBA").the Prime Broker will be responsible for the safekeeping of all the investments and other assets of the Fund which the Prime Broker has agreed with the Responsible Entity to take custody of under the terms of the IPBA, including assets that may subsequently be transferred to the Prime Broker or its affiliates as margin (the "Custody Assets").

Under the IPBA, the Custody Assets may be borrowed, lent, pledged, charged, rehypothecated, disposed of or otherwise used by the Prime Broker for its own purposes, whereupon such Custody Assets will become the absolute property of the Prime Broker (or that of its transferee) or become subject to the charge created by such charge, pledge or rehypothecation, as the case may be. The Responsible Entity will have a right against the Prime Broker for the return of equivalent assets and will rank as an unsecured creditor in relation thereto. As such, as is normal in prime broker agreements, there is a risk that the Responsible Entity may not be able to recover such equivalent assets in full in the event of the insolvency of the Prime Broker.

## **Taxation Risk**

There will be tax implications for investors in the Fund. A general description of the Australian taxation consequences for investors has been set out in Section 7. Changes in tax law (including goods and services taxes and stamp duties), or changes in the way taxation laws are interpreted may impact the tax liabilities of the Fund and its investors. Under current Australian income tax legislation, 'flow-through' trusts are generally not liable for Australian income tax, including capital gains tax ("CGT"), provided investors are presently entitled to all of the income of the trust each year. Should the actions or activities of a 'flow-through' trust (their controlled entities or funds in which they hold an interest) result in the trust falling within the operative provisions of Division 6B or 6C of Part III of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 (Cth), the relevant trust would be taxed on its net (i.e. taxable) income at a rate which is currently equivalent to the corporate income tax rate of 30 per cent.

# 6. Fees and Other Costs

The Corporations Act requires the following standard consumer advisory warning set out below. The information in the consumer advisory warning is standardised across all product disclosure statements and is not specific to information on fees and costs in this Fund.

# Did You Know?

Small differences in both investment performance and fees and costs can have a substantial impact on your long term returns. For example, total annual fees and costs of 2% of your fund balance rather than 1% could reduce your final return by up to 20% over a 30 year period (for example, reduce it from \$100,000 to \$80,000).

You should consider whether features such as superior investment performance or the provision of better member services justify higher fees and costs.

You may be able to negotiate to pay lower contribution fees and management costs where applicable.

Ask the fund or your financial adviser.

## To Find Out More

If you would like to find out more or see the impact of fees based on your own circumstances, the Australian Securities and Investments Commission ("ASIC") website (www.moneysmart.gov.au) has a managed funds fee calculator to help you check out different fee options.

This document shows fees and other costs that you may be charged from your account balance, the returns on your investment or from the Fund's assets as a whole.

Further information about taxes is set out in section 7 of this PDS. You should read all information about fees and costs because it is important to understand their impact on your investment.

Morphic Global Opportunities Fund		
Type of fee or cost	Amount	How and when paid
Fees when your money moves in or	out of the Fund	
Establishment fee The fee to open your investment	Nil	Not applicable
Contribution fee The fee on each amount contributed to your investment	Nil <sup>1</sup>	Not applicable
Withdrawal fee The fee on each amount you take out of your investment	Nil <sup>1</sup>	Not applicable
<b>Termination fee</b> The fee to close your investment	Nil	Not applicable
Management costs	1	1

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> There is, however, a buy/sell spread. Refer to the section on 'Transaction Costs' under the 'Additional Explanation of Fees and Costs' heading below.

Type of fee or cost	Amount	How and when paid
The face and costs for monosing	4.040/ per enour	The management agets of the Fund consist of the following
The fees and costs for managing your investment.	1.81% per annum of net asset value	The management costs of the Fund consist of the following components:
		<b>1. Management Fee</b> <sup>2</sup> : 1.35% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund, calculated daily, paid monthly and reflected in the daily Unit price.
		2. <b>Performance Fee</b> <sup>3</sup> : estimated as nil, calculated and accrued daily and paid in arrears at the end of a Performance Period from the assets of the Fund and reflected in the daily Unit price.
		3. Expense recoveries <sup>4</sup> : 0.27% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund, calculated daily, paid monthly and reflected in the daily Unit price.
		4. Indirect costs <sup>5</sup> : 0.19% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund, paid from the assets of the Fund and reflected in the daily Unit price.
Service fees <sup>6</sup>		
Investment Switching fee The fee for changing investment options	Nil <sup>1</sup>	Not applicable

Note: The Management Fee, the Performance Fee and the Expense recoveries are the only fees paid to the Manager.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Inclusive of GST and net of any RITC. Please refer to the section on 'Management Fee' under the 'Additional Explanation of Fees and Costs' heading below.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> This is the Responsible Entity's reasonable estimate at the time of this PDS of the prospective performance fee for the current and next financial year, and has been estimated based on the Fund's performance being below the Hurdle Return for the current Performance Period as at the date of this PDS. This estimate is inclusive of GST and net of any RITC. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance. The actual Performance Fee payable (if any) will depend on the performance of the Fund over the relevant period. Please refer to the section on 'Performance Fees' under the 'Additional Explanation of Fees and Costs' heading below.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> This is inclusive of GST and net of any RITC. This figure represents the actual expense recoveries for the Fund in the previous financial year ending June 2016. Please refer to the section on 'Expense Recoveries' under the 'Additional Explanation of Fees and Costs' heading below.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> This is inclusive of GST and net of any RITC. This figure represents an estimate of the indirect costs for the Fund in the previous financial year ending June 2016. Please refer to the section on 'Indirect costs' under the 'Additional Explanation of Fees and Costs' heading below.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Please refer to the section on 'Adviser Service Fees' under the 'Additional Explanation of Fees and Costs' heading below.

## Example of Annual Fees and Costs

The following table gives an example of how the fees and costs in the Fund can affect your investment over a 1 year period. You should use this table to compare the Fund with other managed investment products.

This table assumes you will have invested in the Fund and have an average annual balance of \$50,000 throughout the entire year.

Example		Balance of \$50,000 with total contributions of \$5,000 during the year
Contribution Fees	0.00%	Nil
Plus Management Costs	1.81% per annum of net asset value	For every \$50,000 you have in the Fund you will be charged \$905 in Management Costs each year.
Equals Cost of Fund		If you had an investment of \$50,000 at the beginning of the year and you put in an additional \$5,000 during that year, you would be charged fees of:
		\$905*
		What it costs you will depend on the fees you negotiate.

\*This example assumes that management costs were calculated on a balance of \$50,000. It does not take account of management costs that would be charged on the additional \$5,000 contributed during the year. For other fees please refer to the section entitled 'Transaction Costs' and 'Adviser Service Fee' under the heading 'Additional Explanation of Fees and Costs' below.

This example is illustrative only and does not represent any actual, past or future performance of the Fund. They are not a forecast of the expected investment return for the Fund. No assurance is provided that the Fund will achieve any particular performance and you should not rely on this as an indication of performance when deciding whether to invest in the Fund. The actual performance fee will vary, depending on the actual return of the Fund. See "Examples of Performance Fees" below for an illustration of this. Further, this calculation is actually performed daily and the performance fee is an aggregate of the daily amounts and is payable at the end of each Performance Period. The figure used for the Management Costs (consisting of the Management Fee, Performance Fees, indirect costs and expense recoveries in the example above reflects the Responsible Entity's reasonable estimates at the time of this PDS of the typical ongoing amounts. The reasonable estimate of the Performance Fees (being nil) is estimated based on the Fund's performance being below the Hurdle Return for the current Performance Period as at the date of this PDS. These estimates are inclusive of GST less reduced input tax credits.

## Additional Explanation of Fees and Costs

## Management Costs

## Management Fee

The Fund will be charged a management fee of 1.35% p.a. of the net asset value of the Fund. This management fee includes the costs of managing the investments of the Fund (apart from the performance fee, expense recoveries). Management fees are calculated daily and reflected in the Unit price. They are payable out of the Fund within 30 days of the end of each month.

Although the current management fee payable in respect of the Units is only 1.35% p.a. of the net asset value of the Fund, the Constitution allows for a management fee of up to 3.00% p.a. of the gross asset value of the Fund to be paid to the Responsible Entity.

## **Performance Fees**

A performance fee for the Fund is calculated and accrued daily and payable to the Manager. The performance fee is calculated as the sum of the daily performance fee accrual of the Fund during a Performance Period, taking into account any performance fee accrual from any previous Performance Periods that may be carried forward into the current Performance Period.

The Fund will be charged a performance fee of 15.375% of the excess performance by the Fund over the Hurdle Return during each Performance Period if the performance during the Performance Period outperforms the Hurdle Return. As the Unit price will fall after a distribution payment, the Unit value and the Hurdle Return will be adjusted to reflect this.

In the event that the return on the Fund is less than the Hurdle Return during a Performance Period, no performance fee will be payable for that Performance Period and the difference (i.e. the under-performance) will be carried forward to subsequent Performance Periods. This continues in all subsequent periods until a performance fee becomes payable in respect of the Fund.

Generally, the greater the investment performance of the Fund, the greater the performance fees and therefore the greater the overall management costs for the Fund. As per the table on page 15, the performance fees are estimated as nil, calculated based on actual performance fees payable for the year ended June 2016. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance. The actual performance fees payable (if any) will depend on the performance of the Fund over the relevant period.

For withdrawals during a distribution period, any performance fees accrued in respect of Units being withdrawn will already have been calculated and included in the valuation of the Units as at the time of withdrawal.

As the Hurdle Return is based on the Index (compounded daily), it may not always be positive. This means a Performance Fee may be accrued even if the Fund has a negative return. However, unlike some other funds with performance fees, a performance fee will not be payable if the Fund has a negative return. In this case the Performance Fee accrual will be carried forward to subsequent Performance Periods and a performance fee will only be payable when the Fund outperforms the Hurdle Return and the performance becomes positive again.

Scenario	Fund	Hurdle	Performance Fee
Outperform and positive return	+10%	+8%	15.375%*(10%- 8%) = 0.3075%
Outperform and negative return	-5%	-7%	15.375%*(-5%- -7%)= 0.3075% *Accrued but not paid until above highwater mark
Underperform and positive return	+5%	+7%	0%
Underperform and negative return	-7%	-5%	0%

## **Expense Recoveries**

Under the Constitution, the Responsible Entity may recover certain expenses in establishing and operating the Fund that are reasonably and properly incurred. These expenses include, but are not limited to the fees payable to the Responsible Entity, the costs associated with fund administration, accounting, audit, tax administration, reporting, legal expenses, and reasonable research expenses. The amount that the Responsible Entity can recover from the Fund is limited to 0.27% p.a. of the net asset value of the Fund (excluding abnormal expenses, extraordinary expenses, management fee and performance fee). If these expenses exceed 0.27% p.a., they will be borne by the Manager.

Any abnormal or extraordinary expenses such as legal proceeding costs, costs associated with running investor meetings, and costs associated with changes to the Constitution, changing the Responsible Entity or Investment Manager may also be incurred and are recoverable from the Fund as long as those expenses are properly incurred in operating the Fund.

As set out in the table on page 15, the expense recoveries of the Fund for the previous financial year ending June 2016 was 0.27% per annum of net asset value of the Fund.

## Indirect costs

Indirect costs are any amounts paid from the Fund's assets that the Responsible Entity knows or estimates will reduce the Fund's returns, other than the Management Fee, Performance Fees and recoverable expenses as set out elsewhere in this section. As set out in the table on page 15 the indirect costs of the Fund for the previous financial year ending June 2016 were estimated as being 0.19% per annum of net asset value of the Fund.

## Transactional and Operational Costs

Certain expenses are incurred in buying and selling the Fund's investments, such as brokerage, bank charges and government duties and custody ("transaction costs"). These transactional and operational costs are paid directly from the Fund and are therefore reflected in the Unit price.

The Responsible Entity's estimate of the Fund's transactional and operational costs for the previous financial year ending June 2016 is 1.12% pa of the net asset value of the Fund.

Some of these transactional and operational costs are recovered by charging an amount to investors when they enter or exit the Fund. This is often referred to as a "buy/sell spread". A buy/sell spread is charged because applications or withdrawals may involve the purchase or sale of Fund assets, thereby incurring transactional and operational costs. Imposing a buy/sell spread aims to ensure that existing investors do not bear a disproportionate amount of any costs associated with investment of funds from applications or realisations of Fund assets on withdrawals.

The buy/sell spread for investing in the Fund is currently set at 0.3% of the issue price and 0.3% of the withdrawal price. The Constitution allows for the Responsible Entity to calculate and fix the buy/sell spread in accordance with the Responsible Entity's estimate of the transaction costs involved in buying or selling underlying assets of the Fund.

Buy/sell spreads are retained by the Fund and not paid to the Responsible Entity or Morphic. Buy/sell spreads do not apply to Units issued through the reinvestment of distributions. Buy/sell spreads are in addition to the management fees, performance fees and expenses stated above.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2016, the buy/sell spread recovered by the Fund was estimated to be 0.15%. The Responsible Entity estimates that the net transactional and operational costs of the Fund (representing the total transactional and operational costs minus the buy/sell spread recovered) is approximately 0.98% pa of the net asset value of the Fund. The net transactional and operational costs are borne by the Fund.

Under ASIC Class Order 05/26 the Responsible Entity is required to prepare certain documents, including documents describing how the Responsible Entity will exercise discretions when calculating Unit prices. These documents are available from the Responsible Entity at no charge.

In the event that a withdrawal is effected by way of a buyback (as opposed to a redemption), stamp duty of 60 cents per \$100 (being \$300 for a redemption of \$50,000) will also be incurred. The redemption proceeds a Unitholder receives where a buy-back is effected will be net of such stamp duty costs. The stamp duty amount is an additional cost which is paid to the New South Wales Office of State Revenue.

## **Contribution Fee**

The Constitution allows for a contribution fee of up to 5.00% of the issue price of a Unit. The Responsible Entity does not currently charge a contribution fee.

## Withdrawal Fee

The Constitution allows for a withdrawal fee of up to 5.00% of the withdrawal price of a Unit to be paid to the Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity does not currently charge a withdrawal fee.

## Taxation

Government taxes which include GST, stamp duty, withholding or transfer taxes will be a cost to the Fund. The amount of fees and costs disclosed in the table and examples above are inclusive of GST and take into account any reduced input tax credits, where applicable. Investors should be aware that the adviser fee will be subject to GST, however, an input tax credit or a reduced input tax credit may not be available to investors. Investors should seek their own advice in this regard, as this will depend upon each investor's circumstances.

## Alternative Payments

The Responsible Entity does not pay any commissions to financial advisers or advisory firms. Your adviser may, however, charge you an advice fee for facilitating your investment into the Fund. Morphic may receive nonmonetary benefits from the Prime Broker or other stockbroking service providers such as business and technical support, professional development and incidental entertainment.

## Fee Changes and Differential Fees

Should there be a decision to increase fees or charges, investors will be given 30 days written prior notice.

All estimates of fees and costs in this section 6 are based on information available as at the date of this PDS. You should refer to the Fund's website at www.morphicasset.com from time to time for any updates which are not materially adverse to investors.

The Responsible Entity also has the discretion to apply differential management fees and performance fees to certain wholesale investors subject to compliance with legal requirements and any applicable ASIC relief.

The Responsible Entity may charge lower management fees or performance fees or rebate a significant portion of these fees in respect of investments made by the Manager's employees or associated parties of either and may accept investments lower than the minimum contribution limit. Any differential fee arrangements will not adversely impact upon the fees that are paid by other investors as set out in the previous fee table.

## Investing through an IDPS

Investors investing through an IDPS should note that fees outlined in this section are in addition to any other fees and costs imposed by the IDPS operator. Those fees and costs are stated in the offer document provided by your IDPS operator.

# Tax

7.

The following information provides a general summary of some of the Australian tax issues that may arise for individual investors in the Fund who are residents of Australia for taxation purposes and who hold their Units in the Fund on capital account. It does not deal with the particular circumstances of individual investors nor does it constitute advice and cannot be relied upon as such. Investors should seek their own independent tax advice in relation to the taxation implications which may arise from investing in the Fund, taking into account their particular circumstances, before making any investment or other decision in relation to the Fund.

The information in this PDS is based upon Australian income tax law contained in the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 as at the date of this PDS. The Australian income tax law is subject to change at any time and any such changes could adversely affect the information provided herein.

## Taxation of the Fund

The Fund has been established as an Australian resident unit trust. It is intended that investors will be presently entitled to all of the income of the Fund for each financial year such that no taxation liability will accrue to the Responsible Entity. In addition, it is the Responsible Entity's intention that the Fund's investments will not cause the Fund to be taxed as a public trading trust.

Tax losses incurred by the Fund cannot be distributed to investors for tax purposes, but may accumulate in the Fund and may be offset against future assessable income or gains provided certain loss recoupment tests are satisfied.

The Fund intends to qualify as a 'managed investment trust' for Australian tax purposes. If the Fund so qualifies, it will be eligible to make a capital account election for the purposes of the managed investment trust regime under Australian income tax law. This election would mean gains and losses on the disposal of certain assets (such as shares in companies and units in unit trusts, rights and options over such assets but excluding assets that are derivatives, foreign exchange or any other investments that are subject to the 'financial arrangement provisions') by the Fund will be subject to capital gains tax treatment.

## Taxation of Investors

As it is the Fund's intention to distribute all income of the Fund to investors during each financial year, the Fund should not be subject to any Australian income tax.

Investors will be entitled to receive distributions from the Fund provided the income referable to their Units is greater than nil. Proceeds from withdrawals may also contain a component of taxable income as determined by the Responsible Entity.

The taxable components of distributions (whether reinvested back into the Fund or not) or from redemption proceeds should be taxable in the hands of the investors for the financial year to which the distributions relate. That is, investors will include their share of the net (i.e. taxable) income of the Fund in their assessable income for that year.

To the extent that an investor's share of the income of the Fund is attributable to a capital gain made by the Fund, the investor will be treated as having made a capital gain equal to that amount. Where such an amount is a discounted capital gain, the investor is treated as making a discount capital gain equal to twice the amount that is attributable to the discount capital gain. Certain investors may be entitled to apply the relevant capital gain to the extent to which it is included in a net capital gain made for the income year.

Any foreign taxes paid by the Fund may be available to be passed on to investors. Investors may generally be able to claim a foreign income tax offset for these amounts.

Any franking credits derived by the Fund may also generally be available to be distributed to investors in the Fund. The eligibility of the Fund to distribute franking credits is subject to certain conditions such as the holding period rule. An investor's individual circumstances will also be relevant in determining whether an entitlement to franking credits exists.

Where the cash distribution that an investor receives or reinvests exceeds their share of the net income of the Fund, the excess may not be included in their assessable income in the income year received. The non-assessable cash distribution component is commonly referred to as a tax deferred distribution, unless it relates to a discount capital gain that has been made by the Fund.

A tax deferred distribution received will result in a reduction in the cost base of Units. The investor will make a capital gain equal to the amount by which the tax deferred distributions received for an income year exceed the investor's remaining cost base in those units.

Investors will be provided with a distribution and taxation statement each year outlining the various components of the distribution. For example the components of the distribution may include dividends, trading or capital gains, tax deferred income, any taxes withheld or franking credits attached.

Investors who hold their Units on capital account may also crystallise a capital gain or capital loss on disposal or redemption of their Units in the Fund. Any capital gains tax liability that arises may be reduced by the applicable capital gains tax discount where the Units disposed of or redeemed have been held for more than 12 months. The capital gains tax discount varies depending on whether the investor is an individual, trust or complying superannuation fund. Investors should seek their own taxation advice in relation to the capital gains implications that arise on disposal or redemption of Units.

For investors residing in an offshore jurisdiction, withholding tax may be withheld on distributions or withdrawal proceeds carrying a taxable component. Investors residing in an offshore jurisdiction should seek their own tax advice.

## AMIT

On 5 May 2016, the Tax Laws Amendment (New Tax System for Managed Investment Trusts) Act 2016 received Royal Assent, introducing into taxation law the new Attribution Managed Investment Trust (AMIT) regime. An AMIT, in broad terms, is a MIT whose unitholders have clearly defined interests in relation to the income and capital of the fund and the trustee or responsible entity of the MIT has made an irrevocable election to apply the regime.

The regime can apply to a fund that has elected into the AMIT regime from 1 July 2016. The Responsible Entity will consider whether to make the election for the Fund.

The AMIT rules contain a number of provisions that will impact on the taxation treatment of the Fund. The key features of the new tax system will include:

- an attribution model for determining member tax liabilities, which also allows amounts to retain their tax character as they flow through a MIT to its unitholders;
- the ability to carry forward understatements and overstatements of taxable income, instead of reissuing investor statements;
- deemed fixed trust treatment under the income tax law;
- upwards cost base adjustments to units to address double taxation; and
- legislative certainty about the treatment of tax deferred distributions.

In order to operate the Fund as an AMIT, the Constitution of the Fund has been amended in accordance with ASIC Corporations (Attribution Managed Investment Trusts) Instrument 2016/489 (AMIT Instrument) which permits the Responsible Entity to make amendments to the Constitution (to enable the election of the Fund into the AMIT regime) without member approval, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions.

Reforms to the taxation of trusts are generally ongoing. Investors should seek their own advice and monitor the progress of announcements and proposed legislative changes on the potential impact.

## Goods and Services Tax ("GST")

GST will not be imposed on the application for, or withdrawal of Units in the Fund. However, the services for which any fees are payable under the "Fees and other costs" section of this PDS, are likely to be subject to GST. The Fund is unlikely to be entitled to claim a full input tax credit for any GST paid on fees and other costs payable by it. The Fund may be entitled to claim a reduced input tax credit ("RITC") of the GST payable in respect of certain expenses.

Any denial of input tax credit will be an additional cost to the Fund, which may affect the net income of the Fund and the distributions (if any) made by the Fund to investors. Adviser fees are not payable directly by the Fund and as such the Fund is not entitled to claim a RITC.

## Tax File Number ("TFN") or Australian Business Number ("ABN")

Investors who have not provided a TFN, ABN or alternatively provided exemption details may have tax deducted from their distributions at the highest marginal tax rate plus the Medicare Levy (currently 46.5%).

### Stamp Duty

The acquisition or withdrawal of Units should not attract stamp duty. However, stamp duty may apply when transferring Units, including disposing Units by way of buybacks.

## **Common Reporting Standard**

The OECD Common Reporting Standard for Automatic Exchange of Financial Account Information (CRS) will require certain financial institutions to report information regarding certain accounts to their local tax authority and follow related due diligence procedures. The Fund is expected to be a 'Financial Institution' under the CRS and intends to comply with its CRS obligations by obtaining and reporting information on relevant accounts (which may include your units in the Fund) to the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In order for the Fund to comply with its obligations, we will request that you provide certain information and certifications to us for the Fund's compliance with the CRS. We will determine whether the Fund is required to report your details to the ATO based on our assessment of the relevant information received. The ATO may provide this information to other jurisdictions that have signed the "CRS Competent Authority Agreement", the multilateral framework agreement that provides the mechanism to facilitate the automatic exchange of information in accordance with the CRS. The Australian Government has enacted legislation amending, among other things, the Taxation Administration Act 1953 of Australia to give effect to the CRS. The CRS will apply to the Fund with effect from 1 July 2017.

# US Tax Withholding and Reporting under the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA")

The United States of America has introduced rules (known as FATCA) which are intended to prevent US persons from avoiding tax. Broadly, the rules may require the Fund to report certain information to the Australian Taxation Office (ATO), which may then pass the information on to the US Internal Revenue Service (IRS). If you do not provide this information, we will not be able to process your application.

In order to comply with these obligations, Perpetual will collect certain information about you and undertake certain due diligence procedures to verify your FATCA status and provide information to the ATO in relation to your financial information required by the ATO (if any) in respect of any investment in the Fund.

## 8. Class of Units

All the fees and costs quoted in this PDS, the calculation of unit price (including Current Unit Value), income distributions and the right to stagger and delay withdrawal requests are disclosed with reference to the single class of

Units which is currently offered under this PDS. As there is only one class currently on offer in this PDS, they have been described with reference to the whole Fund. In accordance with the Constitution and without the consent of investors, the Responsible Entity has the power to create and issue additional classes of Units in the future or to withdraw them. Such classes may be offered under a different disclosure document. The terms of investment of any future class of Units may differ from the class of Units offered under this PDS.

# 9. Applications, Withdrawals and Distributions

#### How to Invest

For initial investments, you need to complete the application form attached to this PDS. Investments must be made by EFT, cheque or direct debit. The minimum investment amount is AU\$10,000. The Responsible Entity may waive or change this amount in its absolute discretion. Your original signed completed application form, payment and required client identification information should be forwarded to:

## Mainstream Fund Services Pty Ltd – Morphic Global Opportunities Fund GPO Box 4968

Sydney NSW 2001

IDPS Operators may have different minimum investment amounts. Indirect Investors should refer to the IDPS Operator's disclosure document or contact their IDPS Operator to find out whether a different minimum investment amount applies for their IDPS. Indirect Investors should complete any relevant forms provided by the IDPS Operator or contact their IDPS Operator for instructions on how to invest. Indirect Investors should not send applications directly to the Administrator.

Units will be issued as at each Business Day. Provided completed applications and cleared funds are received and accepted at the offices of the Administrator by 12:00 noon (Sydney time) on a Business Day (the "cut off time"), Units will be issued at the price calculated as at that day. Units in respect of applications received after the application cut off time will, unless the Responsible Entity determines otherwise, be issued at the price calculated as at the following Business Day. The Responsible Entity may reject an application for Units in whole or in part in its absolute discretion.

A confirmation note will be sent to the applicant confirming that the applicant has been entered on the register. Unit certificates will not be issued. No interest will be paid to investors on application monies received. Application monies will be held in an application account and any interest earned will not be paid to the investors but will be paid to the Responsible Entity who will transfer it to the Fund.

#### **Issue Price**

The issue price for Units will be the Current Unit Value, plus the buy spread. The Current Unit Value of Units is calculated by determining the net asset value of the Fund and dividing it by the number of Units on issue. See below under "Unit Prices" for more information on the calculation of Unit values.

#### Additional Investments

The minimum additional investment amount is AU\$5,000. The Responsible Entity may waive or change this amount in its absolute discretion. You will need to complete the Additional Investment Form available online at www.morphicasset.com.

IDPS Operators may have different minimum additional investment amounts. Indirect Investors should refer to the IDPS Operator's disclosure document or contact their IDPS Operator to find out whether a different additional investment amount applies for their IDPS.

Additional investments are made subject to the PDS current as at the time of the investment. An electronic copy of the current PDS is available online at www.morphicasset.com.

## **Cooling Off Period**

For persons who are retail clients (as defined in the Corporations Act) a 14 day cooling off period applies, during which you may change your mind about investing in the Fund and request that your application money be returned. The 14 day cooling off period commences on the earlier of:

- confirmation of the application form being received; or
- the fifth Business Day after the day when the Units were issued.

Cooling off rights do not apply to Wholesale Clients or where Units are issued to investors as a result of distribution reinvestments.

A retail client may exercise his/her cooling off rights by notifying the Administrator in writing using the address provided under the "Corporate Directory" at the back of this PDS. A retail client is entitled to the return of his/her application money adjusted for any transaction costs and any increase or decrease in the value of their investment incurred as a result of the application for, and termination of, the investment. Any contribution fees or taxes will be refunded.

If you have authorised the Responsible Entity to pay an adviser service fee to your adviser on your behalf:

- we will reinstate the Units previously deducted from your account and refund the amount to you only if we have not yet paid the fee to your adviser; or
- you will be responsible for seeking a refund of any adviser service fee from your adviser once it has been paid to your adviser.

Investments repaid may create a taxable gain or loss so we recommend that you see your tax adviser.

No cooling-off rights apply in respect of any investment in the Fund acquired by an IDPS Operator on behalf of an Indirect Investor. Indirect Investors should contact their IDPS Operator directly or refer to the IDPS Operator's disclosure document for information about any cooling off rights they may have in relation to their IDPS.

#### Investing through an IDPS

The Responsible Entity has authorised the use of this PDS as disclosure to persons seeking access to the Fund

indirectly through an IDPS. Investors investing in the Fund via an IDPS do not themselves become Unitholders in the Fund, and accordingly have no rights as a Unitholder. The offer document for your IDPS should have further details. Your rights and liabilities will be governed by the terms of the relevant IDPS, which you should read carefully prior to directing the relevant operator to invest in the Fund.

### Withdrawals

You may request to withdraw all or part of your investment by providing the Administrator with a withdrawal request form, subject to maintaining the minimum account balance of AU\$5,000. The minimum withdrawal amount is AU\$5,000 or the balance of a Unit Holder's holding if less than \$5,000. The Responsible Entity may waive or change these amounts in its absolute discretion.

IDPS Operators may have different minimum withdrawal and account balance amounts. Indirect Investors should refer to the IDPS Operator's disclosure document or contact their IDPS Operator to find out whether a different minimum withdrawal and account balance amount applies for their IDPS. Indirect Investors should complete any relevant forms provided by the IDPS Operator or contact the IDPS Operator to make a withdrawal from the Fund. Indirect Investors should not send withdrawal requests directly to the Administrator. In addition, the time it takes to process withdrawal requests made through an IDPS Operator may vary from the time frames specified in this section due to their processing requirements (please refer to the IDPS Operator's disclosure document for details).

Withdrawal requests received by the Administrator by 12:00 noon (Sydney time) on a Business Day (the "cut off time") will generally be processed at the withdrawal price calculated as at that day. Withdrawal requests received after the withdrawal cut off time will generally be processed using the withdrawal price calculated as at the following Business Day. The Responsible Entity may at its discretion accept withdrawal requests which are received after the withdrawal cut off time and may change the notice periods and the place at which withdrawal requests must be sent.

To make a withdrawal request, please complete the withdrawal request form available online at www.morphicasset.com. Withdrawal requests may be sent electronically, however, payment of withdrawal proceeds will not be made until the original completed withdrawal request is received.

Withdrawal proceeds will be paid net of any bank charges to your nominated bank account. Generally withdrawal proceeds will be paid within 10 Business Days of the day on which your withdrawal request was processed. However under the Constitution, the Responsible Entity has up to 30 days to pay withdrawal proceeds. Furthermore, where the Fund is not liquid as defined in the Corporations Act, then withdrawals can only be made in accordance with the procedures set out in the Corporations Act.

The Responsible Entity has the right to delay and stagger processing withdrawal requests where withdrawal requests on any single Business Day in aggregate exceed 5% of the number of Units on issue, or where withdrawal requests over five consecutive Business Days in aggregate exceed 10% of the number of Units on issue. In this case, the Responsible Entity may refuse to withdraw all such Units which are subject to these withdrawal requests and may scale down the amounts to be withdrawn pro rata in response to such extent as the Responsible Entity considers necessary.

The Responsible Entity is not permitted to process withdrawal requests after it commences winding up the Fund. The Responsible Entity may also determine that it is desirable for the protection of the Fund or in the interests of investors (as a whole) to suspend the issue or withdrawal of Units or the calculation of issue or withdrawal prices or the payment of proceeds of any withdrawal whilst:

- an emergency (including an emergency caused by a mechanical or electronic malfunction) exists as a result of which it is not reasonably practicable for the Responsible Entity to acquire or dispose of assets or to determine fairly the issue or withdrawal price; or
- any relevant financial, stock, bond note derivative or foreign exchange market is restricted; or
- trading on any such market is restricted; or
- any state of affairs exists as a result of which it is not reasonably practicable for the Responsible Entity to acquire or dispose of the assets or to determine fairly the issue or withdrawal price; or
- any moratorium declared by a government of any country in which a significant proportion of the Fund is invested exists.

In the unlikely event that the Fund becomes illiquid (ie liquid assets do not account for at least 80% of the value of the assets of the Fund), withdrawals may only be made in accordance with an offer made under the Corporations Act.

Withdrawal proceeds could contain an element of taxable income as determined by the Responsibility Entity which may represent a share of distributable income of the Fund for the distribution period during which the Unit is redeemed.

Unit holders will be notified in writing of any material changes to withdrawal rights.

#### **Buy-backs**

We may also agree at our discretion to buy-back your Units in the Fund. This option is mainly relevant to New Zealand investors.

The withdrawal value that you'll receive for Units under the buy-back method will be reduced by duties and other costs that arise using this method, so it's likely that you'll receive less for the withdrawal of your units than using the direct withdrawal method. Please refer to the Transaction Costs description in Section 6 for more information. You should seek financial and/or tax advice before requesting a buyback of your units. A buy-back request form is available from the Administrator.

#### Distributions

Unless an investor indicates otherwise on their application form, distributions will be reinvested back into the Fund as at the first day on which Units are issued following the relevant distribution date. Units will be taken to be issued at the issue price (no buy spread) applicable for that date. Investors can elect to receive their distribution in cash by indicating this on the application form or by contacting the Administrator at least 10 Business Days prior to a distribution.

The Fund expects to make distributions semi-annually, however the Fund may make interim distributions at any time. The net income of the Fund available for distribution to investors will be determined as at 30 June and 31 December each year. Distributions are generally expected to be paid within 20 Business Days after 30 June and 31 December

The nature of distribution payments may, subject to the Constitution, change in the sole discretion of the Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity or Morphic will advise you in writing of any expected material changes. The Fund does not guarantee that distributions will be made semi-annually or that any distribution will be made at all.

The Unit price generally falls by the amount of any distribution per Unit immediately after the distribution date.

Investors will only be entitled to receive income from their Units if the income referable to their Units is greater than nil. To the extent that the income referable to Units is less than or equal to nil, investors in Units shall not be entitled to receive any distribution of income.

#### Valuation

The valuation of all Fund assets is provided by the Fund's Administrator, Mainstream Fund Services Pty Ltd which is unrelated to both the Responsible Entity and the Investment Manager.

The majority of the assets of the Fund will be invested in long and short positions in Global equities, fixed interest instruments, commodities, credit instruments and currencies.

The Fund's assets will be valued at the market value, a value determined from an independent source or by the Administrator in accordance with industry standards.

The Fund's assets will be valued during hours in which global exchanges are open for business. For Unit pricing purposes, the Fund's assets will be valued at or around the close of business day for the relevant exchange. Whenever exchange prices are available, futures contracts will be valued at the last traded price. For non-Australian dollar denominated contracts, the valuations back to the Australian dollar will be done based on the closing foreign exchange price at 4:00pm London time. All options contracts are traded on global exchanges and will use the valuation methods prescribed by the relevant exchange. All equities positions will be valued at their last traded price on the exchange.

If the market values are not available or if the Responsibility Entity reasonably believes that the market values do not represent a fair value, then the Responsibility Entity may use another valuation method provided that it can be verified.

#### Unit Prices

The Fund's net asset value is the market value of its assets less its liabilities valued using the methods specified above as at each Business Day and using prices in each market around the world as they close during that date. Due to the time delay with some markets closing overseas, Unit prices as at a particular day will generally only be available on the first or second Business Day following the day as at which the prices are current.

Liabilities include accruals for management costs, provisions and contingent liabilities.

The Unit price is adjusted by the transaction costs (i.e. buy/sell spread) to calculate the issue and withdrawal price.

Units are issued on a forward priced basis which means that investors will only know their issue or withdrawal price after applications are accepted and processed.

# 10. Fund Structure

The Fund is a registered managed investment scheme. Investors' funds are pooled and managed in accordance with a set objective and strategy. When you invest in the Fund, you acquire units in the Fund which entitles you to a proportionate beneficial interest in the Fund's portfolio of assets.

A diagram illustrating the structure of the Fund, including the service providers for the Fund and the flow of investment money through the structure, is provided below.



The risks associated with this structure are set out in section 5. The Responsible Entity ensures its service providers comply with their obligations through operating a risk based review program of the service providers to ensure that performance is monitored independently and tested on an ongoing basis. The frequency of these reviews is determined by risk information which is reviewed on a quarterly basis through the service provider review schedule.

## **Related Parties**

There are no related parties in the Fund's structure, including relationships with service providers.

# **11. Responsible Entity**

Perpetual Trust Services Limited ("Responsible Entity") is the Responsible Entity for the Fund. Perpetual Trust Services Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Perpetual Limited which has been in operation for approximately 130 years. Perpetual Limited is an Australian public company that has been listed on the Australian Securities Exchange for over 50 years.

The Responsible Entity holds Australian Financial Services License number 236648 issued by ASIC, which authorises it to operate the Fund.

The Responsible Entity is bound by the Constitution and the Corporations Act. The Responsible Entity has lodged a compliance plan with ASIC which sets out the key measures which the Responsible Entity will apply to comply with the Constitution and the Corporations Act. The Responsible Entity has established a Compliance Committee with a majority of external members. The compliance plan is overseen by the Compliance Committee and is audited annually with the audit report being lodged with ASIC.

The Responsible Entity has the power to delegate certain aspects of its duties. The Responsible Entity has appointed Morphic Asset Management Pty Limited as the investment manager of the Fund. There are no unusual or materially onerous terms in the Investment Management Agreement under which the Manager has been appointed. The Responsible Entity is able to terminate the Manager's appointment under the Investment Management Agreement at any time in circumstances, including but

not limited to:

- fraud, misconduct, dishonesty or gross negligence on the part of the Investment Manager;
- where the Investment Manager enters into receivership, liquidation, ceases to conduct business, sells the business or is legally unable to operate as an Investment Manager; or
- where the Investment Manager is in breach of any representations or warranties to the Responsible Entity.

Termination in these circumstances is without payment of any penalty.

The Responsible Entity has also appointed Merrill Lynch International and Morgan Stanley & Co. International as Custodians and Prime Brokers to the Fund and Mainstream Fund Services Pty Limited ("Mainstream") as the Administrator of the Fund.

# 12. Other Service Providers

## Manager

For more information, please see section 3.

## Administrator

Mainstream is a fund administration and processing specialist and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Mainstream Fund Services Pty Ltd ABN 48 112 252 114. Its business is the provision of 'back-office' functions for fund managers and financial institutions. It employs dedicated and experienced operational management and process personnel for Unit registry, investment administration and fund accounting services. The Responsible Entity has appointed Mainstream to provide all back office fund administration processes including investor services, Unit pricing, fund accounting and valuation of assets of the Fund. Mainstream has given and not withdrawn its consent to be named as the Administrator in this PDS. It has not been involved in the preparation of any part of this PDS. It has not authorised or caused the issue of, and expressly disclaims and takes no responsibility for any part of this PDS. Other than reference to its name it takes no responsibility for the contents of this PDS.

## Prime Broker and Custodian

The Responsible Entity has appointed Merrill Lynch International ("MLI")<sup>1</sup> as Prime Broker and Custodian pursuant to an International Prime Brokerage Agreement ("IPBA") supplemented by MLI's standard Terms and Conditions of Business. Under the terms of the IPBA the services provided by MLI will include the clearing and settlement of transactions, and securities lending and in connection therewith MLI will act as custodian of the Fund's assets. Merrill Lynch International Australia Limited ABN 31 002 892 846 ("MLIA"), which is an affiliate of MLI, is also a party to the IPBA and will provide cash financing and may also provide securities lending to the Fund under the terms of the IPBA.<sup>2</sup>

MLI will, in accordance with the rules of the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA"), identify, record and hold the Fund's investments in such a manner that the identity and location of the investments can be identified at any time and so that such investments are readily identifiable as belonging to a customer of MLI and are separately identifiable from MLI's own investments, and should therefore be unavailable to the creditors of MLI. However, owing to the nature of the law or market practice of jurisdictions outside the United Kingdom, MLI may believe that, in certain situations, either it is in the Fund's best interest for the relevant investments to be registered or recorded in the name of MLI or in the name of a third party or, for reasons of applicable law and market practice, it is not feasible to do otherwise. In such circumstances, the Fund's investments will or may be so registered or recorded. As a consequence, such investments may not be segregated from MLI's own investments and, in the event of MLI's default, may not be as well protected.

Any cash which MLI holds or receives on the Fund's behalf will not be treated as client money and will not be subject to the client money protections conferred by the FCA's client money rules. As a consequence, the Fund's cash will not be segregated from MLI's own cash and will be used by MLI in the course of its business, and the Fund will therefore rank as one of MLI's general creditors in relation thereto.

MLI may hold the Fund's investments with any person appointed by MLI as sub-custodian, including affiliates of MLI. MLI and such sub-custodian may deposit the Fund's investments with any securities depositories on such terms as such systems customarily operate.

MLI shall exercise reasonable skill, care and due diligence in the selection of any sub-custodian. MLI shall be responsible, for the duration of the sub-custody arrangement, for satisfying itself as to the ongoing appropriateness of any such sub-custodian to provide custodial services to the Fund. MLI will periodically assess such sub-custodian and will make appropriate enquiries to confirm that the obligations of such sub-custodian continue to be competently discharged.

MLI shall not be liable for losses arising out of the acts or omissions of any sub-custodian that is not an affiliate of MLI, save where MLI has been negligent in the selection of any such sub-custodian. MLI shall not be liable for the insolvency of any sub-custodian.

As security for the payment and discharge of all liabilities of the Fund to MLI, all investments and cash held by MLI will be charged by the Fund in favour of MLI and will therefore constitute collateral for the purposes of the FCA rules. Investments and cash may also be deposited by the Fund with MLI as margin and will also constitute collateral for the purposes of the FCA rules. In certain circumstances, investments which constitute collateral for the purposes of

(other than Bank of America NA, Australia Branch (**BANA Australia**), do not represent deposits or other liabilities of BANA Australia. None of MLI, Merrill Lynch Australia, nor any of their related entities (other than BANA Australia) are an Authorised Deposit-taking Institution under the Banking Act 1959 (Cth) or regulated by the Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority.

<sup>1</sup> The investor acknowledges that MLI is exempt from the Australian requirement to hold an Australian financial services licence under the Corporations Act by Class Order 03/1099 issued by ASIC. MLI is regulated by the Financial Services Authority under the laws of the United Kingdom, which differ from Australian Laws.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The obligations arising from the financial services provided by MLI, Merrill Lynch Australia and any of their related entities

the FCA rules will not be segregated from MLI's own investments and may be available to creditors of MLI.

The Fund's investments held by MLI may be used by MLI for its own purposes or the purposes of any third party, whereupon such investments will become the property of MLI and the Fund will have a right against MLI for the return of equivalent assets. The Fund will rank as an unsecured creditor in relation thereto and, in the event of the insolvency of MLI, the Fund may not be able to recover such equivalent assets in full.

MLI will not be liable for any loss to the Fund resulting from any act or omission in relation to the services provided under the International Prime Brokerage Agreement, unless such loss results from the negligence, wilful default or fraud of MLI or any of its affiliates. MLI will not be liable for the acts or omissions of any sub-custodian or other agent which is not an affiliate of MLI, save where MLI has been negligent in the selection of any such sub-custodian. The Fund has agreed to indemnify MLI and its affiliates against any loss suffered by, and any claims made against, them, save where such loss or claims result from the negligence, wilful default or fraud of MLI or any of its affiliates.

MLI is wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Bank of America Corporation<sup>3</sup>, a publicly traded company which, together with its affiliates, provide a range of banking, investing, asset management and other financial and risk-management products and services. Bank of America Corporation stock is a component of the Dow Jones Industrial Average and is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. At the date of this document, Bank of America Corporation has a rating of A-. MLI is regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Conduct Authority and authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority.

MLI is a service provider to the Fund and neither it nor any of its affiliates are responsible for the preparation of this document or the activities of the Fund and therefore neither it nor its affiliates accepts any responsibility for any information contained in this document. Neither MLI nor its affiliates will participate in the investment decision-making process.

The Responsible Entity reserves the right to change the prime brokerage and custodian arrangements described above by agreement with MLI and/or, in its discretion, to appoint additional or alternative prime broker(s) and custodian(s) without notice to investors. Investors will be notified in due course of any change to, or appointment of additional, prime broker(s) and custodian(s).

The Responsible Entity has appointed Morgan Stanley & Co. International as the Fund's second Prime Broker.

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc. (the "Prime Broker"), a member of the Morgan Stanley Group of companies, based in London, will provide prime brokerage services to the Fund under the terms of the International Prime Brokerage Agreement (the "Agreement") entered into between the Fund and the Prime Broker for itself and as agent for certain other members of the Morgan Stanley Group of companies (the "Morgan Stanley Companies"). These services may include the provision to the Fund of margin financing, clearing, settlement, stock borrowing and foreign exchange facilities. The Fund may also utilise the Prime Broker, other Morgan Stanley Companies and other brokers and dealers for the purposes of executing transactions for the Fund. The Prime Broker is authorised by the Prudential Regulatory Authority ("PRA") and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA") and the PRA.

The Prime Broker will also provide a custody service for all the Fund's investments, including documents of title or certificates evidencing title to investments, held on the books of the Prime Broker as part of its prime brokerage function in accordance with the terms of the Agreement and the rules of the FCA. The Prime Broker may appoint subcustodians, including the Morgan Stanley Companies, of such investments.

In accordance with FCA rules, the Prime Broker will record and hold investments held by it as custodian in such a manner that the identity and location of the investments can be determined at any time and that such investments are readily identifiable as belonging to a customer of the Prime Broker and are separately identifiable from the Prime Broker's own investments. Furthermore, in the event that any of the Fund's investments are registered in the name of the Prime Broker where, due to the nature of the law or market practice of jurisdictions outside the United Kingdom, it is in the Fund's best interests so to do or it is not feasible to do otherwise, such investments may not be segregated from the Prime Broker's default may not be as well protected.

Any cash which the Prime Broker holds or receives on the Fund's behalf will not be treated by the Prime Broker as client money and will not be subject to the client money protections conferred by the FCA's Client Money Rules (unless the Prime Broker has specifically agreed with or notified the Fund that certain cash will be given client money protection). As a consequence, the Fund's cash will not be segregated from the Prime Broker's own cash and will be used by the Prime Broker in the course of its investment business, and the Fund will therefore rank as one of the Prime Broker's general creditors in relation thereto.

As security for the payment and discharge of all liabilities of the Fund to the Prime Broker and the Morgan Stanley Companies, the investments and cash held by the Prime Broker and each such Morgan Stanley Company will be charged by the Fund in their favour and will therefore constitute collateral for the purposes of the FCA rules. Investments and cash may also be deposited by the Fund with the Prime Broker and other members of the Morgan

Australia nor is it regulated by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Bank of America Corporation is not an Authorised Deposittaking Institution within the meaning of the Banking Act 1959 of

Stanley Group of companies as margin and will also constitute collateral for the purposes of the FCA rules.

The Fund's investments may be borrowed, lent or otherwise used by the Prime Broker and the Morgan Stanley Companies for its or their own purposes, whereupon such investments will become the property of the Prime Broker or the relevant Morgan Stanley Company and the Fund will have a right against the Prime Broker or the relevant Morgan Stanley Company for the return of equivalent assets. The Fund will rank as an unsecured creditor in relation thereto and, in the event of the insolvency of the Prime Broker or the relevant Morgan Stanley Company, the Fund may not be able to recover such equivalent assets in full.

Neither the Prime Broker nor any Morgan Stanley Company will be liable for any loss to the Fund resulting from any act or omission in relation to the services provided under the terms of the Agreement unless such loss results directly from the negligence, wilful default or fraud of the Prime Broker or any Morgan Stanley Company. The Prime Broker will not be liable for the solvency, acts or omissions of any sub-custodians or other third party by whom or in whose control any of the Fund's investments or cash may be held. The Prime Broker and the Morgan Stanley Companies accept the same level of responsibility for nominee companies controlled by them as for their own acts. The Fund has agreed to indemnify the Prime Broker and the Morgan Stanley Companies against any loss suffered by, and any claims made against, them arising out of the Agreement, save where such loss or claims result primarily from the negligence, wilful default or fraud of the indemnified person.

The Prime Broker is a service provider to the Fund and is not responsible for the preparation of this document or the activities of the Fund and therefore accepts no responsibility for any information contained in this document. The Prime Broker will not participate in the investment decision-making process.

## Auditor

The Responsible Entity has appointed Crowe Horwath as the independent auditor of the financial statements of the Fund.

An individual partner of PwC acts as the auditor of the Fund's Compliance Plan.

# **13. Additional Information**

#### **Keeping you Informed**

Morphic prefers to use email as the delivery method for all investor communications. Investors are encouraged to provide their email addresses so that communications can be made in the most efficient, effective and environmentally friendly manner.

When you invest in the Fund you will receive the following information according to your chosen method of delivery:

- A confirmation note for each investment or withdrawal.
- Monthly and semi-annual performance reports which include Fund facts and updates including Fund's net asset value, Unit prices, redemption prices, Fund review, fund performance and net return, and material changes in risks or fund strategy and changes to management or key service providers (if any).
- Annual reports which include asset allocations, liquidity profile, maturity profile of liabilities, leverage ratio, derivative counterparties, monthly/annual investment returns, and changes in key service providers (if any).
- > A distribution statement at the end of each distribution period.
- > A tax statement on an annual basis.

Indirect Investors will receive information and reports from their IDPS Operator and not the Responsible Entity. Indirect Investors should contact their IDPS Operator to determine which reports will be sent to them.

If the Fund becomes a disclosing entity under the Corporations Act, the Responsible Entity will be subject to regular reporting and continuous disclosure obligations. This includes the requirement to prepare annual and half yearly financial reports for the Fund and disclose information to investors which may have a material effect on the price or value of Units or would be likely to influence persons who commonly invest in securities in deciding whether to acquire or dispose of Units.

ASIC has issued Regulatory Guide 198 Unlisted Disclosing Entities: Continuous Disclosure which includes a good practice guide for website disclosure. The Responsible Entity intends to comply with its continuous disclosure obligations by posting on the website (www.morphicasset.com) all continuous disclosure information.

In addition to this, you have a right to request a copy of the annual financial report most recently lodged with ASIC and, if available, any half-yearly financial report and continuous disclosure notices that have been lodged. We are required to send you a copy (free of charge) within five days of receiving your request.

A copy of the annual financial report detailing the financial position of the Fund for the financial year will be available

online at www.morphicasset.com. You may elect to receive a copy by email or post by completing the appropriate section of the application form.

## **Updated Information**

Information that is not materially adverse information is subject to change from time to time. Updated information on the Fund is available online at www.morphicasset.com. The information available includes investment performance history, Unit prices, fund updates and the current offer document. A paper copy of any updated information will be given to a person without charge upon request.

#### Anti-Money Laundering

The Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorism Financing Act 2006 ("AML Act") and other applicable antimoney laundering and counter terrorism laws, regulations, rules and policies which apply to the Responsible Entity ("AML Requirements"), regulate financial services and transactions in a way that is designed to detect and prevent money laundering and terrorism financing. The AML Act is enforced by the Australian Transaction Reports and Analysis Centre ("AUSTRAC").

In order to comply with the AML Requirements, the Responsible Entity and the Administrator (the "Entities") are required to, amongst other things:

- verify your identity and source of your application monies before providing services to you, and to reidentify you if they consider it necessary to do so; and
- Australia or any other country, including the AML Requirements;
- where transactions are delayed, blocked, frozen or refused the Entities are not liable for any loss you suffer (including consequential loss) caused by reason of any action taken or not taken by them as contemplated above, or as a result of their compliance with the AML Requirements as they apply to the Fund; and
- an Entity may from time to time require additional information from you to assist it in this process.

The Entities have certain reporting obligations under the AML Requirements and are prevented from informing you that any such reporting has taken place. Where required by law, an entity may disclose the information gathered to regulatory or law enforcement agencies, including AUSTRAC.

The Entities are not liable for any loss you may suffer as a result of any compliance with the AML Requirements.

## Constitution

The Fund is governed by a Constitution which, together with the Corporations Act and other relevant laws, regulates the Fund and the legal relationship with investors.

This PDS sets out certain elements of the Constitution. To the extent that any inconsistencies exist between this PDS and the Constitution, the terms of the Constitution prevail. A copy of the Constitution is available on request from the Responsible Entity. where you supply documentation relating to the verification of your identity, keep a record of this documentation for seven years.

If you are investing indirectly through an IDPS, you will need to satisfy your IDPS Operator's requirements for verifying your identity.

The Entities reserve the right to request such information as is necessary to verify the identity of an applicant and the source of the payment. In the event of delay or failure by the investor to produce this information, the Entities may refuse to accept an application and the application monies relating to such application or may suspend the payment of withdrawal proceeds if necessary to comply with AML Requirements applicable to them. Neither the Entities nor their delegates shall be liable to the Applicant for any loss suffered by the Applicant as a result of the rejection or delay of any subscription or payment of withdrawal proceeds.

The Entities have implemented a number of measures and controls to ensure they comply with their obligations under the AML Requirements, including carefully identifying and monitoring investors. As a result of the implementation of these measures and controls:

transactions may be delayed, blocked, frozen or refused where an Entity has reasonable grounds to believe that the transaction breaches the law or sanctions of A

The Constitution seeks to limit investors' liability to the Fund. However, these provisions have not been determined by the courts and as such no assurance can be given to limit investors' liability.

The Responsible Entity may amend the Constitution from time to time, provided that it does not adversely affect investors' rights; otherwise approval will be required by special resolution.

Other provisions in the Constitution also deal with:

- duties and rights of the Responsible Entity;
- calculations applicable to investors including Unit prices, net asset value of the Fund and performance fees;
- investor's rights, including rights to receive distributions and to make withdrawals from the Fund;
- the Responsible Entity's right to withdraw Units;
- limits on fees and charges and the Responsible Entity's indemnity from the Fund;
- termination and winding up of the Fund, and
- investor meetings; and procedure to handle complaints.

## **Compliance Plan**

The Fund has a compliance plan which sets out the procedures for the Responsibility Entity to comply with the Corporations Act and the Constitution. This plan is overseen

by a compliance committee and is audited annually and lodged with ASIC.

## Consents

Morphic has given and not withdrawn as at the date of this PDS its consent to the use of statements about it appearing in this PDS in the form and context as they appear.

Mainstream has given and not withdrawn as at the date of this PDS its consent to be named as the Administrator in this PDS. It has not been involved in the preparation of any part of this PDS. It has not authorised or caused the issue of, and expressly disclaims and takes no responsibility for any part of this PDS. Other than reference to its name it takes no responsibility for the contents of this PDS.

MLI has given and not withdrawn as at the date of this PDS its consent to be named as Prime Broker and Custodian in this PDS. MLI is a service provider to the Responsible Entity and is not responsible for the preparation of this PDS or the activities of the Responsible Entity and therefore accepts no responsibility for any information contained in this PDS.

Crowe Horwath has given and not withdrawn as at the date of this PDS its consent to be named as the Financial Auditors and Tax Adviser in this PDS.

## Privacy

By completing the application form you agree to the Responsible Entity and the Administrator collecting and using your personal information for the purposes of processing your application and providing you with information. If you choose not to provide the information required, the Responsible Entity may not be able to supply your investments or services to you.

By completing the application form you also agree that the information collected about you can be supplied to external third parties to notify you of other products. If you do not want your personal information to be used in this way, or if you require further information about the use of your personal information obtained in connection with investing in the Fund, please contact the Responsible Entity.

The Responsible Entity will give you access to the personal information collected about you upon your request, unless it is entitled under the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth), and chooses, not to do so.

The Responsible Entity must give access to your information, which is entered on the Fund's registers, to others as required by the Corporations Act or under relevant tax laws.

If an investor provides details about his/her financial adviser, the Responsible Entity will disclose personal information to the adviser or staff of the adviser unless instructed otherwise.

The Responsible Entity will not collect or hold personal information about Indirect Investors or in connection with your investment in the Fund. Indirect Investors should contact their IDPS Operator for a copy of their privacy policy or in relation to privacy issues.

## Complaints

The Responsibility Entity has an established procedure for dealing with complaints.

If Investors wish to make a complaint they should write to:

Perpetual Trust Services Limited Level 18 123 Pitt Street Sydney NSW 2001, Australia P: +61 2 9229 9000

The Responsible Entity must acknowledge any complaint in writing immediately. The Responsible Entity must within 45 days investigate, properly consider, decide what action (if any) to take or offer regarding the complaint and communicate its decision including providing a final written response to the Investor.

If you are a wholesale investor as defined under section 761G of the Corporations Act, Financial Ombudsman Service ("FOS") may at its discretion decide whether or not it will deal with your complaint. If you are not satisfied with the outcome, the complaint can be referred to the FOS. FOS is an external complaints resolution scheme of which the Responsible Entity is a member. FOS's details are:

GPO Box 3 Melbourne, VIC 3001

Tel	1300 780 808
Fax	+613 9613 6399
Email	info@fos.org.au
Website	www.fos.org.au

For Indirect Investors, any inquiries or complaints about your investment through the IDPS or about the IDPS should be directed to your IDPS Operator.

From 1 January 2018 however, all investors (regardless of whether you hold units in the Fund directly or hold units indirectly via a Platform) are able to access Perpetual's complaints procedures outlined above. If investing via a Platform and your complaint concerns the operation of the Platform then you should contact the Platform operator directly.

## **Further Information**

The information contained in this PDS does not purport to be comprehensive. Prospective investors and investors should read the Constitution for all of the rights and obligations of being a member in the Fund.

Indirect Investors should contact their IDPS Operator for further information.

# 14. Important Additional Information for New Zealand Investors

## Warning Statement for New Zealand Investors

- This offer to New Zealand investors is a regulated offer made under Australian and New Zealand law. In Australia, this is Chapter 8 of the Corporations Act 2001 (Aust) and regulations made under that Act. In New Zealand, this is subpart 6 of Part 9 of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 and Part 9 of the Financial Markets Conduct Regulations 2014.
- This offer and the content of the offer document are principally governed by Australian rather than New Zealand law. In the main, the Corporations Act 2001 (Aust) and the regulations made under that Act set out how the offer must be made.
- There are differences in how financial products are regulated under Australian law. For example, the disclosure of fees for managed investment schemes is different under the Australian regime.
- The rights, remedies, and compensation arrangements available to New Zealand investors in Australian financial products may differ from the rights, remedies, and compensation arrangements for New Zealand financial products.
- Both the Australian and New Zealand financial markets regulators have enforcement responsibilities in relation to this offer. If you need to make a complaint about this offer, please contact the Financial Markets Authority, New Zealand (http://www.fma.govt.nz). The Australian and New Zealand regulators will work together to settle your complaint.
- The taxation treatment of Australian financial products is not the same as for New Zealand financial products.
- If you are uncertain about whether this investment is appropriate for you, you should seek the advice of an appropriately qualified financial adviser.
- The offer may involve a currency exchange risk. The currency for the financial products is not New Zealand dollars. The value of the financial products will go up or down according to changes in the exchange rate between that currency and New Zealand dollars. These changes may be significant.
- If you expect the financial products to pay any amounts in a currency that is not New Zealand dollars, you may incur significant fees in having the funds credited to a bank account in New Zealand in New Zealand dollars.
- The dispute resolution process described in this offer document is available only in Australia and is not available in New Zealand.

Investors should seek professional advice, having regard to their particular circumstances, and satisfy themselves as to the tax implications, both in Australia and New Zealand, of investing in the Fund.

## Distribution reinvestment plan

Units allotted as a result of distribution reinvestment will be allotted in accordance with this PDS (see "Distributions" on page 23 for further details) and the Constitution. The Responsible Entity will send you a statement showing the amount of the distribution and the number of reinvested Units that have been allocated to your investment in the Fund within 30 days from when those Units were allocated.

The following documents are available from us, free of charge on request:

- the most recent annual report of the Fund (if any);
- the most recent financial statement of the Fund (if any);
- the current PDS relating to Units in the Fund; or
- the Constitution of the Fund and any amendments.

# 15. Glossary

Terms	Meaning	
Absolute Return	The objective of achieving positive returns over a period of time regardless of market conditions within any single asset class benchmark.	
Administrator	Mainstream Fund Services Pty Ltd ABN 81 118 902 891.	
AML Act	Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorism Financing Act 2006.	
ASIC	Australian Securities and Investments Commission.	
AU\$	Australian dollars.	
Business Day	A day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which trading banks are open for general banking business in Sydney.	
Capital Gains Tax	Capital gains tax in Australia applies when a profit is made on the disposal of a capital asset that was acquired after 20 September 1985. Capital assets are defined in the legislation to be "any kind of property" or "a legal or equitable right that is not property."	
Constitution	The trust deed establishing the Fund dated 12/07/2012 as amended from time to time.	
Corporations Act	Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).	
Current Unit Value	Net asset value of the Fund divided by the number of units on issue. This is used to determine the issue price and the withdrawal price.	
Custodians	Merrill Lynch International & Morgan Stanley & Co. International.	
Cut Off Time	12:00 noon (Sydney time) on a Business Day or any other time prescribed by the Responsible Entity from time to time.	
Derivative	A security whose price is dependent upon or derived from one or more underlying assets. The value of a derivative is influenced by fluctuations in the underlying asset and would be reasonably expected to be determined with respect to the underlying asset. The most common types of derivatives are forward contracts, futures, options and swaps. Derivatives may be traded on exchanges (exchange-traded derivatives) or contractual arrangements between 2 parties (over-the-counter, or OTC derivatives).	
Distribution Period	A semi-annual period ending at midnight on June 30 <sup>th</sup> and December 31 <sup>st</sup> of each year.	

Terms	Meaning	
Excluded Securities	Excluded Securities means Securities issued by entities which are participants in the following industries	
	<ul> <li>Armaments;</li> </ul>	
	Tobacco and alcohol,	
	Gambling;	
	<ul> <li>Coal and Uranium mining;</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Oil and gas Extraction;</li> </ul>	
	Intensive animal farming and aquaculture; or	
	Logging of rainforest or old growth timber.	
Fund	Morphic Global Opportunities Fund ARSN 159 465 157	
Global	International and Australian	
Hurdle Return	The return on the Fund by the end of a Performance Period if it had earned the return achieved by the Index from the start of the Performance Period, compounded daily.	
IDPS	Investor directed portfolio service: an IDPS is a vehicle through which investors access a range of underlying investment options, consolidated reporting and streamlined transaction statements.	
IDPS Operator	An entity that operates and offers an IDPS.	
Index	The MSCI All Countries Total Return Daily Index (Bloomberg Code: NDUEACWF) in Australian dollars.	
Indirect Investor	A person who invests indirectly in Units in the Fund through an IDPS.	
Long or Long Position	Investing in an asset with the belief that the asset will appreciate in monetary value.	
Options	A derivative that represents a contract sold by one party (option writer) to another party (option holder). The contract offers the buyer the right, but not the obligation, to buy (call) or sell (put) a security or other financial asset at an agreed-upon price (the strike price) during a certain period of time or on a specific date (exercise date).	
Performance Period	A semi-annual period ending at midnight on 30 June and 31 December of each year or such other period as the Responsible Entity may determine from time to time where:	
	the first performance period will be the period between the commencement date of the Fund and 31 December 2012;	
	the last performance period will be the period between the last occurring 1 July or 1 January, whichever is the later and finishing on the final distribution of the Fund; and	
	in respect of the term of the Manager's appointment, includes any part period arising thereof.	
Prime Brokers	Merrill Lynch International & Morgan Stanley & Co. International.	

Terms	Meaning	
Responsible Entity	Perpetual Trust Services Limited ABN 48 000 142 049.	
Short Selling	Borrowing an asset to sell on the market with the belief that the asset will diminish in monetary value so that the asset may be subsequently bought to repay the lender at a profit.	
Momentum	A trend in the movement of an asset price.	
Unit	An undivided beneficial interest in the assets (subject to the liabilities) of the Fund as provided for in the Constitution.	
Value-At-Risk	Value-At-Risk ("VAR") calculates the maximum loss expected on an investment, over a given time period at a specified level of confidence. The Fund's daily VAR limit of 5% of gross asset value of the Fund at 95% confidence means that there is a 1 in 20 chance that the Fund may suffer a loss of 5% or more of its gross asset value in one trading day.	
Wholesale Client	Has the meaning given to it in the Corporations Act.	

# **Corporate Directory**

## **Responsible Entity**

Perpetual Trust Services Limited Level 18 123 Pitt Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia

Tel +612 9229 9000 Fax +612 9262 5190 www.perpetual.com.au

## **Investment Manager**

Morphic Asset Management Pty Limited Level 3 139 Macquarie Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia

Tel +612 9194 6707 www.morphicasset.com

## **Administrator**

Mainstream Fund Services Pty Limited Level 1 51-57 Pitt Street Sydney NSW 2000

GPO Box 4968 Sydney NSW 2001 Australia

Tel +612 9247 3326 Fax +612 9251 3525 Call Centre +61 1300 133 451 Email enquiries@mainstreamgroup.com www.mainstreamgroup.com

## **Financial Auditor and Tax Adviser**

Crowe Horwath Level 15, 309 Kent Street Sydney NSW 2000 www.crowehorwath.com.au

## **Prime Brokers and Custodians**

Merrill Lynch International 2 King Edward Street London EC1A 1HQ

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc 25 Cabot Square / Canary Wharf London E14 4QA

